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FEDERAL TRADE COM M ISSION,l s

Plaintiff, 2:t'tl-t'V-('lll2-R(7J-I-RI-
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V .17

INFUSION M EDIA, INC., PLAINTIFF'S COM PLAINTl 8 
a corporation, also F O R PERM ANENT
d/b/a Google M oney Tree, INJUNCTION AND OTHER19 
Google Pro, EQUITABLE RELIEF
Internet Income Pro and20 ' 

.Google Treasure Chest,

21 w Es'r coAs'r INTERNET M EDIA
, INc.,

a corporation, also22 



          

l PLATINUM  TELESERVICES
, INC.,

a corporation;2

JONATHAN EBORN3 
individually anL as an officer of
Infusion M edia. In .c ,4 
Two W arnings, LLC,
Two Part Investmen ,ts LLC, and5 
W est Coast lnternet M edia. Inc.',

6 STEPHANIE BURNSIDE
,

individtlally and as an officer of7
Two W arnlngs, LLC.
Two Part Investmen ,ts LLC, and8 
W est Coast Internet M edia, Inc.;

9 M ICHAEL M CLAIN M ILLER
inpividually and as an Vficer of1 0
Intusion M edia, In .c ,
Two W arnings, LLC, andl l
Two Part Investments, LLC; and

l 2 TONY NORTON
,

individually and aj an officer ofl 3
Platinum Teleservlces, lnc.

l 4 rDelendants.

I 5

I 6



          

l JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2 2. This Court has subject matterjurisdiction over this action ptlrsuant to 28 U.S.C.

3 jj 1 33l , 1 337(a), and 1 345. and l 5 U.S.C. jj 45(a) and 53(b). This action arises under

4 I 5 U.S.C. j 45(a) and 15 U.S.C. j l 693e.

5 3. Venue in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada is proper

6 under 28 U.S.C. j l 391 (b) & (c) and 1 5 U.S.C. j 53(b).

7 THE PARTIES

8 4. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by

9 statute. 1 5 U.S.C. j 41 et .%eq. The Commission is chargcd. itlter (7/2, with entbrcement of



          

I Gambel Oak Drive, Sandy, Utahs 84092. W est Coast Internet transacts or has transacted

2 business in the District of Nevada.

3 7. Defendant Two W arnings, LLC, (iirrwo W arnings'') is a Nevada Iimited liability

4 company with its principal place of business listed in Nevada public records as 3557 S. Valley

5 View, Suite 1 00, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89 103. Two W arnings transacts or has transacted btlsiness

6 in the District of Nevada.

7 8. Defendant Two Part Investments, LLC, (''Two Part Investments'') is a Nevada

8 lim ited liability com pany with its principal place of business listed in Nevada public records as

9 3557 S. Valley View, Suite l 00, Las Vegas, Nevada. 89 l 03. Two Part Investments transacts or

1 0 has transacted btlsiness in the District of Nevada.

1 l 9. Defendant Platinum Teleservices, Inc.- (t'platinum Teleservices'') is a Nevada

1 2 corporation with its principal place of business listed in Nevada public records as P.O. Box I 536.

l 3 Draper, Utaha 84020. Platinum Teleservices has applied fbr authority to conduct business in

14 Utah, with the address of its principal office listed in Utah public records as 4 ()5 East I 2450

l 5 50t1th, Draper, Utah, 84020. Platinum Teleservices transacts or has transacted business in the



          

1 Coast Internet and was. during at least part of the time period relevant to this Complaint, a

2 manager of Two W arnings and Two Part lnvestments. At all times material to this Complaint.

3 acting alone or in concert with others, she has formulated- directed, controlled. had the authority

4 to control, or participated in the acts and practices of the Gllogle M oney Tree Corporate

5 Det-endants. including the acts and practices set forth in this Complaint. Btlrnside transacts or

6 has transacted business in this District in connection w'ith the mattcrs alleged herein.

7 I 2. Defendant M ichael M cl-ain M iller, also known as M . M cl-ain M iller and M cl-ain

8 M iller (''M iller'') is an officer of lnfusion Media, a manager of Two W arnings and Two Part

9 Investments, and was, during at Ieast part of the time period relevant to this Com plaint, the

1 0 director of lnfusion M edia. At a11 times material to this Complaint, acting alone or in concert

l l with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, had the atlthority to control. or participated

l 2 in the acts and practices of the Google M oney Tree Corporate Defendants. including the acts and

l 3 practices set tbrth in this Complaint. M iller transacts or has transacted business in this District

I 4 in connection with the matters alleged herein.



          

I common enterprise using names including tiGoogle M oney 'l'reee-' i'Google Pr().*' ''Internet

2 lncome Pro,*' 'tGoogle Treasure Chest,'' t'googlemoneytree.com,''

3 Ssinternetincomeintitative.com,'' and e'googletreasurechest.cllln'' while engaging in the deceptive

4 and unlawtkl acts and practices alleged below. The Google M oney Tree Corporate Defendants



          

l fee (usually $ 1 .97 or $3.88). The defendants' websites fail. however, to disclose adequately that

2 they automatically enroll consumers who order a kit in a website membership and/or other



          

I taken to a payment information page.

2 22. The payment information page requires constlmers to enter credit card or debit

3 card information to supplement the contact information already entered. Text stating that the

4 consumer will be charged a small amount (usually $1 .97 ()r $3.88) for shipping and handling is

5 prominently featured at the top of these sign-up pages, ncar the fields in which consumcrs mtlst





          

1 3 I . Particularly in Iight of the prominent representations on their wcbsites that

2 consumers purchasing the defendants' kits would be charged only a small amount and that

3 consumers were receiving a free trial of website access. the disclosures on the detkndants'

4 *--l-erms & Conditions'' pages are inadequate to notify consumers that if they ordered a kit they

5 would be enrolled in a negative option continuity program and to inform constlmers of the

6 terms and conditions of the continuity program .

7 32. In numerous instances, consumers were tlnaware that the dclkndants were

8 enrolling them in continuity programs and imposing charges on their credit card accounts or

9 debiting their bank accounts in excess of the shipping and handling fee. In numerous instances.

10 consumers do not discover that the defendants are im posillg charges or debits in excess of the

l l shipping and handling fee until the consumers review their credit card or bank account

I 2 statements.

l 3 33. The defendants did not obtain authorization in a writing signed or similarly

14 authenticated by the consumer to debit consumers' bank accounts on a recurring basis. The

I 5 defendants also failed to provide consumers with a copy 01' any purported atlthorization to debit

l 6 the consumers' bank accounts on a recurring basis.

l 7 Defendants' False Income Claims

1 8 34. The defendants' websites represent that consulners can earn klver $ l 00,000 in six

I 9 months tlsing the defendants' kits. The defendants' websites include the tbllowing specitic

2() income claims:

2 l @ Learn How A Stay At Home M om ,

22 W ith No Experience, Earned

23 $107,389 In Six M onths Just

24 



          

l Just filling out forms and doing searches on Google and Yahoo: and

2 * gM lake over $100.000 in the next 6 months working from home.

3 35. The defendants' websites also include, among other testimonials. the following:

4 W ant Prooo Look at m y sales for the first part of M ay this

5 year. Keep in m ind, I started in this system PART TIM E in

6 M arch. It is so easy, I can't believe I didn't think of it before!

7 If you have access to a computer (doesn't have to be your ownls

8 and can follow instructions . . . YO U CAN DO THIS TO O!

9 36. A chart adjacent to this testimonial reflects the fbllowing dates and

10 dollar amounts:

l I Fri M ay 16 $1,167.37

1 2 Thu M ay 15 $2,606.40

l 3 W ed M ay 14 $1,824.32

14 Tue M ay 13 $858.04

l 5 M on M ay 12 $2,370.03

l 6 Sun M ay 11 $839.06

l 7 Sat M ay 10 $681.48

1 8 Fri M ay 09 $1,054.67

l 9 Thu M ay 08 $1,111.36

20 W ed M ay 07 $2,115.40

2 l Tue M ay 06 $2,957.37

22 M on M ay 05 $3,473.72

23 Sun M ay 04 $1,878.94

24 Sat M ay 03 $2,649.97



          

I a kit from the defkndants and receive a product shipment rcceive only a computer CD. the

2 contents of which do not provide consumers with a method for earning substantial income by

3 tjust filling out forms and doing searches on Google and Yahoo.''

4 





          

1 50. The detkndants' failure to disclose or to disclose adequately the material

2 information set forth in Paragraph 49, above, in Iight of the representation described in



          

1 THE ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER ACT AND REGULATION E

2 57. Section 907(a) of the EFTA, l 5 U.S.C. j I 693e(a), provides that a ''preauthorized

3 electronic fund transfer from a consumer's account m ay be authorized by the consumer only in



          

1 l 2 C.F.R. j 205. l()(b).

2 62. In numerous instances, the defendants have debited constlmers' bank accotlnts on

3 a recurring basis without providing a copy of a written authorization signed or similarly

4 atlthenticated by the constlmer for preauthorized electronic lknd transfers f'rom the constlmer's

5 account, thereby violating Section 907(a) of the EFTA, l 5 U.S.C. j l 693e(a), and Section

6 205. l 0(b) of Regulation Ea I 2 C.F.R. j 205. 10(b).

7 63. Pursuant to Section 9 l 7 of the EFI-A, 1 5 U.S.C. j 1 693o(c), every violation of the

8 EFI-A and Regulation E constitutes a violation of the FTC Act.

9 64. By engaging in violations of the EFTA and Regulation E as alleged in

10 Paragraphs 61 and 62, the defendants have engaged in violations of the FTC Act. l 5 U.S.C.

l 1 j 1 693o(c).

l 2 CO NSUM ER INJURY

I 3 65. Consumers have suffered and will continue to suffer substantial injury as a result

14 of the defendants' violations of Section 5(a) of the FI'C Act. Section 907(a) of the EFTA. and

I 5 Section 205. l 0(b) of Regulation E. In addition, defendants have been unjustly enriched as a

i 6 result of their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive rclief by this Court, the defendants

l 7 are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public interest.

18 



          

l l . Award Plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary reliel' as may be

2 necessary to avert the Iikelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to

3 preserve the possibility of effective final relief. including but llot limited to a telnporary

4 restraining order. an order freezing assets. immediate access to the defendants' business

5 premises, and appointment of a receiver:

6 2. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent ftlttlre violations of the the FTC Acts the

7 EFTA, and Regulation E, by the defendants',




